
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2012 
 

Planning Commission Meeting 
 

 
March 14, 2012 

 
 
 
 

Regular Session: 6:30 p.m. 
 (Town Hall)  
 
 
Council Goals    
 
Top Council Priorities: 
 
 Street Repairs and Drainage Improvements 
 Sidewalk Installations 
 Improve Planning and Apply for Infrastructure Grants and Loans 
 Implement Streetscape Plan 
 Strengthen Marketing and Events 
 Clean UP Parking Area on North Taylor Street 



 

  

 
Town of Minturn 

 
Planning Commission Agenda 

March 14, 2012 
 

Regular Session – 6:30 p.m. 
Minturn Town Hall – 302 Pine Street 

 
 
Call to Order/Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda Items 
a. Items to be pulled from Action Items  
b.  Emergency Items to be added  
c. Order of the Agenda Items  
d.  Approval of the agenda 

 
Approval of Minutes  
Planning Commission meeting minutes from February 8, 2012 
          
Public Comment 
Members of the public may have 5 minutes to comment on any item they wish 
that is not on the agenda 
 
Action Items  
 

1. DRB 2012 -01; A Request for Design Review Board approval of a 2,837 
square foot, single-family residence at 974 Main Street.  Applicant: Clark 
 

2. VAR 2012-01; A Variance request to construct a detached garage 5 feet 
into the 10 foot rear property setback at 273 Boulder Street.  Applicant: 
Brodin 
 

3. DRB 2012-02; A Request for Design Review Board approval for a detached 
garage at 273 Boulder Street.  Applicant: Brodin 
 
 

Discussion Items 
 

1. Future Land Use Code Amendments 
 

Planning Department Update 
 
Commissioner Comments 
 
Adjournment   



 
Minturn Planning Commission 
2.8.11 meeting minutes 
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

  

Town of Minturn 
 
Planning Commission Meeting 
February 8, 2012 
 
Regular Session – 6:30 p.m. 
Minturn Town Hall – 302 Pine Street 
 
 
Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
The February 8, 2012 meeting of the Minturn Planning Commission was called to 
order by Chairman Stuart Brummett at 6:32 p.m. 
 

Members Present: Stuart Brummett, Chairman 
             Lynn Teach, Vice – Chair 
             Melissa Decker 
             Tim Osborne 
 
 Members Absent: Michael Gallagher – resigned on 1/23/12 

 
Staff Present:         Chris Cerimele, Town Planner 

 
 

Approval of Agenda Items 
 
Chairman Brummett asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  None 
were noted. 
 
A motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Commissioner 
Osborne and seconded by Commissioner Teach.  The motion passed 4-0. 
 
Approval of Minutes  
 
Chairman S. Brummett asked if there were any changes to the meeting minutes 
from January 25, 2012.  None were noted. 
 
A motion to approve the minutes from 1.25.12 was made by Commissioner 
Teach and seconded by Commissioner Decker.  The motion passed 4-0 
          
 
 



 
Minturn Planning Commission 
2.8.11 meeting minutes 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

  

Public Comment 
 
None 
 
Action Items  
 

1. Zoning Text Amendment 2012-03; A Zoning Text Amendment to create 
open space dedication requirements for subdivisions, Planned Unit 
Developments and multi-family developments that are subject to a 
Conditional Use Permit. 

 
Chris Cerimele introduced the agenda item and provided an overview of the 
proposed regulations.  A discussion ensued regarding the fee in-lieu of 
dedication requirements in section D-5.  Questions were raised regarding how 
this payment would be calculated.  One option discussed was basing the 
payment on the County Assessor’s valuation of the land.  Another option was to 
value the land based on an independent appraisal.  Staff agreed to research 
how other jurisdictions determine the payment in-lieu amount. 
 
The provisions relating to public access was the next discussion topic.  It was 
determined that open space should be restricted to the residents of the 
development that necessitates the open space dedication unless the project 
area is 10 acres of larger.  In those instances, the provided open space shall 
have no restrictions on public access. 
 
A motion was made by L. Teach to table this item pending further staff revisions.  
T. Osborne seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0. 

 
Discussion Items 
 

1. Lot Coverage Definition Revision 
 
Staff presented a revised lot coverage definition.  The new definition states that 
50% of the area of second and third level decks would be included in the lot 
coverage calculation.    Additionally, the Commission suggested revising the 
definition to state that the portion of the roof eave beyond the exempted 24 
inches shall be counted towards the allowable lot coverage. 
  

2. Design Review Board submittal requirements and public hearing 
procedures. 

 
Staff introduced the discussion topic and stated that the Town Council 
suggested a few minor changes to the proposed submittal requirements.  The 



 
Minturn Planning Commission 
2.8.11 meeting minutes 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

  

Council requested that no exceptions be made and that all projects that are 
subject to DRB approval shall be required to submit a topo survey and 
foundation ILC.   
 
Commissioner Comments 
 
Commissioners Teach and Osborne summarized the Department of Local Affairs 
training that they attended with staff in Leadville.  
 
Adjournment   
 
Commissioner Osborne made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:56 pm.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Teach.  The motion passed 4-0. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
Planning Commission Hearing Date: March 14, 2012 
     
FILE NUMBER:      DRB 2012-01 
PROJECT TYPE: Design Review – Single Family Residential 
LOCATION: 974 Main Street 
ZONING: Residential – South Town Character Area 
APPLICANT: Barry Clark 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This item is a request for Design Review Board approval for a single family 
residence at 974 Main Street.  The parcel is located in the residential zone of the 
South Town Character Area.   
 

 
 
 



 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant intends to demolish the existing single family home and construct a 
two-level, 2.780 square foot.  The proposed residence will include 4 bedrooms.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The following table outlines the zoning standards as defined in section 16-17-190 
of the Minturn Municipal Code for the Residential Zone of the South Town 
Character Area: 
 
 

 
Minimum Lot 

Size 
 

 
5,000 sq. ft.  



Maximum Lot 
Coverage 50% 

Maximum 
Building 
Height* 

Maximum 
Residential 

28’ 
 

Required 
Parking 

 

3 spaces 

Minimum 
Residential 
Setbacks 

20 ‘(Front) 
10’ (Rear) 
5’ (Side) 

 

*Building height means the vertical distance from natural 
grade to the top of the highest roof beams on a flat or shed 
roof, the deck line on a mansard roof and the average 
distance between the eaves and the ridge level for gable, 
hip and gambrel roofs.  

 
 

Clark Residence – 974 Main Street 
Lot Size 10,537 sq. ft. 
Lot Coverage 19.4% 
Building Height 23’ 4 1/16” 

24’ 7” 
25’ 2 1/2 “ 

Parking 3 spaces 
Front Setback 85’ 
Rear Setback 58’ 

Side Setback North side: 7’ 
South side: 5’ 6” 

 
 
The proposal conforms to all of the dimensional standards of the underlying zone 
district and no variances are required with this proposal.    All building heights 
are within the maximum allowable height limits.   Additionally, all portions of the 
residence comply with the setback requirements of the Town and the structure 
covers 19.4% of the property.  The allowable lot coverage for the South Town 
Character Area is 50%. 
 
Water service is currently provided to the property via the Town’s municipal 
water system. Therefore, the applicant will not be required to purchase a new 
water tap from the Town. 
 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 



 
The landscaping plan shows two aspen trees in the 20’ sewer easement.  These 
trees will need to be relocated to another location that is not within the sewer 
easement.    
 
Additionally, staff is recommending that the applicant submit a detailed 
drainage and grading plan prior to the issuance of a building permit to ensure 
that all of the runoff from this parcel is properly contained on the applicant’s 
property.  Direct discharge into the Eagle River shall not be permitted. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the application subject to the following 
condition: 
 

 A revised landscaping plan shall be submitted and approved by staff 
prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 

 A detailed grading and drainage plan shall be submitted and 
approved by staff prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

 

 No changes to an approved plan or design may be made without 
the written consent of the Town staff.  Staff reserves the right to 
forward any change to the DRB for final approval; 

 Design Review Board approval does not constitute a permit for 
building. 

 DRB approval shall not become valid for 20 days following the date 
of approval, pursuant to the Minturn Municipal Code Chapter – 
Appeals 

 Approval of this project shall lapse and become void one (1) year 
following the date of final approval, unless a building permit is issued 
and construction is commenced and is diligently pursued toward 
completion.  A maximum of 1, one year extension may be granted at 
the request of the applicant. 

 
DRAFT MOTION; DRB 2012-01: 
 
I move to approve DRB 2012-01 with conditions based on the following findings 
of fact: 
  
 

1. The proposal is a use-by-right and conforms to all applicable Town of 
Minturn zoning regulations. 
 

2. The proposal complies with the Town of Minturn Design Standards. 



 
The following conditions shall apply to this approval: 
 

 A revised landscaping plan shall be submitted and approved by staff 
prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 

 A detailed grading and drainage plan shall be submitted and 
approved by staff prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

 

 No changes to an approved plan or design may be made without 
the written consent of the Town staff.  Staff reserves the right to 
forward any change to the DRB for final approval; 

 Design Review Board approval does not constitute a permit for 
building. 

 DRB approval shall not become valid for 20 days following the date 
of approval, pursuant to the Minturn Municipal Code Chapter – 
Appeals 

 Approval of this project shall lapse and become void one (1) year 
following the date of final approval, unless a building permit is issued 
and construction is commenced and is diligently pursued toward 
completion.  A maximum of 1, one year extension may be granted at 
the request of the applicant. 

 
OR 
 
Approve DRB 2012-01 
Provide alternative direction to staff 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Chris Cerimele, Town Planner 
 
Attachments: 
Letter of Intent 
Property Survey 
Site and Landscaping Plan 
Floor plans 
Building elevations 



LETTER mpp design shop 
  

 PO Box 288 

 095 Willowstone Place 

 Gypsum, CO 81637 

 c 970-390-4931 
 michael@mppdesignshop.com 

 

 

 

1201_Clark_letter-of-intent_02-29-12.docx  Page 1 of 1 

February 29, 2012 

 

Tel - (970) 827-5645 

Fax - (970) 827-5545 

e-mail - planner1@minturn.org 

 

Regarding: Clark Residence  

 

Location: 

South Minturn Addition, Lot 48 

Parcel No: 2103-351-02-055 

974 Main Street 

Minturn, CO 81645 

 

This letter serves to state the intentions of the owner, Barry Clark, to construct a new residence at 

the above mentioned location. The character area is South Town.  

 

The project is a single family house with a single car garage, 4 bedrooms and 3 ½ baths. The 

style is intended to be a small mountain town Victorian w/ a front porch and gable roofs that 

face the street. The primary materials are horizontal wood lap siding, 50-year asphalt shingles, 

and a corrugated rusted metal roof at the front porch.  

 

The house is to be located as close to the river as possible. There is a sewer easement that runs 

through the property on the eastern side that restricts how far the house can be located to the 

east.  

 

The east side of the house faces the river and has views of Lion’s Head rock and surrounding 

cliffs. The east elevation of the house has large windows to capture the views and light and 

large door openings to connect inside and outside spaces.  

 

The maximum height of the building from grade to the midpoint of the roof from peak to eave is 

25’-2 ½”. The allowable height limit is 28’.  

 

Thank you for your consideration.  

 

Respectfully,  

 

SIGNED: Michael P Pukas 
 

   

   

 

Town of Minturn 

Attention:  Planning Department 

302 Pine Street 

P.O. Box 309 

Minturn, CO 81645 



dIAIN UNK FEXCE
(flFlc^t)

.*L -*** '
"'g-"5: 

-_7t81-*
-*dr 

,*6L'--

Topographic SurveY
97 4 Main Street
Minturn, Colorado

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
[oi +a-AHo PART oF Lor 49, sourH MTNTURN ADDlltoN' MINTURN' EAGLf
COUNTY, COLORADO.

NOTES:

1) DAIE OF SUR\EY: August 18, 2011

2) Street Address: 974 Moln Street (posted)

3) Locotlon of lmprovements ond lot llnes ore bosed upon the
oLove-refcrenced'grrvey Monuments found of tho tlmo of thb sun€y og
ehown hcrcon. Thle Survty doee not constltuto o boundory !!ryey !19r -9lty
Innestlgotlon lnto record 6osements or ancumbronces ossocloted wlth thls
proporty.

4) Thls ls not o monumcntad survty, Lond Survcy Plot, or lmProwmcnt
Sirrrry plot. No boundory rcsolutlon woa pcrformcd ln moklng thls survry.
All tol ilncs, cetbock llne-, ond coscmcnt llnca 3hown hcrcon should bc
consldcrcd opproxlmotc ond should not bc rcllcd upon for thc plocemcnt
of ony futurc lmprovcmcnts.

5) Thls lot moy bc sublct to odditlonol sctbock r€qulrcmcnts pcr thc
town of Mlntum.

6) Record coscmentg ond rlghts-of-woy shown for this plot w€ru dcrlwd
from Tltle Commltment Ordcr No. 01530-200E-Amended No. C2 provlded
by Title Compony of thc Rockles with on cffectlve dote of July 27, 2011,

7) Slte Benchmork wos the sewer monhole os ghown

8) Contour lntervol: l'

,^So

I, Potrlck J. Quenon, o Rcglstcrcd Profesglonol Lond Survepr in thc
Stote of Colorodo. herebv certlfv thot this TOPOGRAPHIC SURIEY wtStote of Colorodo, hereby certlfy thot this TOPOGRAPHIC
donc by mc or undcr my dircct supcrvlslon, ond thot it

LOT +7

oT 49

,^*$o

L

I
t

donc by mc or undcr my direcf supcrvlslon, ond thot lt wos pcrformed
uslng thc atondord cors ond proctlc. uscd-ln_thc or.9g o!^thc tlme of
the survey. Thc Notes hereon ore o port of thls certiflcotlon.

Potrlck J. Qucnon P.LS. 37924
Quenon Englnccrlng ond Survelng,
Colorodo Profcsslonol
Lond Survepr

wo3

- - -ss72t l fe - :66 'd

Fdr{o 2f tRc{ F{
N 27 U (I7 FEET
FROPERW O(il8

ut}t r-rl2'
A|.Ur. CAP tsa 3009r
3U. dnilER (f LOT 54

J

I

* /
k
$g

Wry FROI

\
I

-:-
t

t

/ R:2EE
I l-2576
, 1F51.40

*7&!68

co{G tl tl(
1 inch : 20 ft.

ut{E

f -/ u.s. Hl€HwAY No. 24
(60'n.o.w.)

/ 
/ crlrrERUNE Ro D -

NOllCe Addhg to Cdftdo ld Fq It Sl ffio dy l{d
@Uo. b!..d upa oy d.lbct h thl. rmy rtthh tho !6
oftr !d fh dMd adr ddlcL h no .mt, m.t ot
acud bGsd lFr my datact h tiL aruy b. Ennncad fro
ttrd tm Fr fffi lha dota of d{ltdtlon ahm hqu.

LOT 48
10,537 sq. ft.

ONE STORY I
WOOD FRAMF/

DWELLIryG'

,/'

l| '- *-l ssic *{( 
ill

I  * ."----*-H sJl ti
i  " .-  |  , l

_ i./ r+"1 I-.,€'- i t: I

i l . - " : 1
f i - - - t i

a r l ;
# i  ' l

1 v
\ f l

"e,\z*F,d{ I
$..- 

e'o'w' - z56e'6

"*-'-Y l-
'"""/ h-:- ='!,*r llr

- -l\ :--* ^,* ln--./ i- ,\-- 7609#-  r ] -

'f:,1,d\

r.1.J

















PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
Planning Commission Hearing Date: March 14, 2012 
 
FILE NUMBER:      VAR 2012-01 
 DRB 2012-02 
PROJECT TYPE: Variance Request 
 Design Review   
LOCATION: 273 Boulder Street 
ZONING: Residential – Old Town Character Area 
APPLICANT: George Brodin 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 
        
SUMMARY 
 
The applicant has submitted an application for a Variance to construct a 
detached garage in the 10 foot rear property setback.  If the Variance 
requested is granted, the proposed garage will be constructed 5 feet from the 
rear property line. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                      
 
 
 
 
 
 

N

SITE 



 
 

 



 
 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant intends to tear down the existing one car garage and construct a 
new garage on the northwest corner of the property.  Demolition of the existing 
garage will eliminate a structure that encroaches into the 5 foot side yard 
setback and 10 foot rear yard setback.   
 
The existing deck on the house will be reconfigured to allow proper access into 
the new garage.  Additionally, the garage door will be oriented towards the 
southeast of the property.  This will prevent any potential issues that could occur 
due to a vehicle backing directly onto Pine Street.  
 
STAFF ANALYSIS:  
 
The applicant has taken measures to reduce the number of encroachments 
that exist on the property.  The proposed configuration and location of the 
garage is necessary due to a utility pole and pedestal that prevents the garage 
from being moved further back from the rear property line.  If these obstructions 
were not present, a garage could be constructed between the two properties 
without a Variance. 
 



Approval of this application will help to address the Town’s goal of creating 
additional off-street parking.  Additionally, the proposal is consistent with the 
Planning Commission’s recommended text amendment that would allow 
garages to encroach half way into the required rear yard setback.   
 
 
Section 16.21.690 of the Minturn Municipal Code outlines the criteria for granting 
a Variance. 
 
Section 16.21.290 Variances   
 
Purpose of provisions; limitations. 
 

1. In order to prevent or to lessen such practical difficulties and 
unnecessary physical hardships inconsistent with the 
objectives of this Chapter as would result from strict or literal 
interpretation and enforcement, variances from certain 
regulations may be granted. Cost or inconvenience to the 
applicant of strict or literal compliance with a regulation shall 
not be a reason for granting a variance.  

 
2. Variances may be granted only with respect to the 

development standards prescribed for each zone, including 
lot area and site dimensions, setbacks, distances between 
buildings, height, density, site coverage, useable open space, 
landscaping, site development, and parking and loading 
requirements. 

 
3. The power to extend variances does not extend to the use 

regulations prescribed for each district because the flexibility 
necessary to avoid results inconsistent with the objectives of 
this title is provided by Section 16.21.620, Conditional Use 
Permits, and Division 3, Amendments to the Text of These Land 
Use Regulations or the Character Area and Zone District Map. 

 
Approval criteria. 
 
Before acting on a variance application, the Planning Commission and the 
Town Council shall consider the following factors with respect to the requested 
variance: 
 

1. The relationship of the requested variance to other existing or 
potential uses and structures in the vicinity; 
 

2. The degree to which relief from the strict or literal 
interpretation and enforcement of a specified regulation is 



necessary to achieve compatibility and uniformity of 
treatment among sites in the vicinity, or to attain the 
objectives of this Chapter without grant of special privilege; 
 

3. The effect of the requested variance on light and air, 
distribution of population, transportation and traffic facilities, 
public facilities and utilities and public safety; and 
 

4. Such other factors and criteria as the Planning Commission 
and Town Council deems applicable to the proposed 
variance.   

 
Findings required. 
 
The Planning Commission and Town Council shall make the following findings 
before granting a variance: 
 

1. There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions 
applicable to the site of the variance that do not apply generally to 
other properties in the same zone; 

 
 

2. The exceptional or extraordinary circumstances of the site create a 
situation in which the strict, literal interpretation and enforcement of 
the specified regulation would result in practical difficulty or 
unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with the objectives of 
this chapter; 

 
 

3. That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the 
public health, safety or welfare, or materially injurious to properties 
or improvements in the vicinity and will not result in substantial 
impairment to the purposes of this Chapter.   

 
4. There is no substantial impairment to the public that would result 

from the granting of the variance. 
 
 
 
STAFF FINDINGS   
 
Staff believes that the necessary findings have been met to grant this Variance 
request.  The depth of the parcels along the 200 block of Boulder Street are only 
75 feet deep.  All of the other residential zoned lots in Minturn have a minimum 
depth of 100 feet.  Furthermore, the location of the utility pole and pedestal 
creates a situation that requires that the new structure be sited in the northwest 



corner of the property with the garage door oriented towards the southeast. This 
configuration is beneficial because vehicles will not be pulling directly into traffic 
on Pine Street.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff recommends approval for Variance application VAR 2012-01 & Design 
Review application DRB 2012-02. 
 
DRAFT MOTION VAR 2012-01: 
 
In the application for a variance at 273 Boulder Street, we have read the staff 
report. We find ourselves in agreement with staff findings including all plans and 
attachments as set forth, and recommend approval of application VAR 2012-01 
based on the following findings of fact: 
 

1. There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions 
applicable to the site of the variance that do not apply generally to 
other properties in the same zone; 

 
 

2. The exceptional or extraordinary circumstances of the site create a 
situation in which the strict, literal interpretation and enforcement of 
the specified regulation would result in practical difficulty or 
unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with the objectives of 
this chapter; 

 
 

3. That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the 
public health, safety or welfare, or materially injurious to properties 
or improvements in the vicinity and will not result in substantial 
impairment to the purposes of this Chapter.   

 
4. There is no substantial impairment to the public that would result 

from the granting of the variance. 
 
 
 
DRAFT MOTION DRB 2012-02: 
 
In the application for Design Review Board approval at 273 Boulder Street, we 
have read the staff report. We find ourselves in agreement with staff findings 
including all plans and attachments as set forth, and recommend approval of 
application DRB 2012-02: 
 
 



  
OR: 
 I move an alternate motion 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Letter of Intent 
Improvement Survey Plat 
Site Plan / Building Elevations 
 
 
 








